NEWS RELEASE

FOR RELEASE

Hunzelman, Putzier & Co,, PLC today released an audit report on Buena Vista County, lowa.

The County had local tax revenue of $23,137,686 for the vear ended June 30, 2005, which included
$1,138,709 in tax credits from the state. The County forwarded 516,428,647 of the local tax revenue to the
townships, school districts, cities, and other taxing bodies in the County.

The County retained $6,709,039 of the local tax revenue to finance County operations, 8 4.4 percent increase
from the prior year. Other revenues included charges for service of $1,094,826; operating grants, contributions,
and restricted interest of $4,304,049; capital grants, contributions, and restricted inferest of $2,720,192;
unrestricted investment earnings of $91,268; and other gencral revenues of $1835,402.

Expenses for County operations totaled $11,492,797, a 7.5 percent increase from the prior vear. Tixpenses
included $2,423,980 for Roads and Trangportation, $2,044,276 for Public Safety and Legal Services, and
52,487,712 for Non-program.

A copy of the audit report is available for review in the office of the Auditor of the State and the County

Auditor's office.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

To the Officials of Buena Vista County:

We have sudited the accompanying fnancial staterents of the governmental activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fand information of Buena Vista County, lowa, as of and {or the year ended June 30,

e a

2005, which collectively comprise the County’s bagic financial statements listed in the table of contents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of Buena Vista County’s management, Our responsibilily 1s 1o express
opinions on these financial statements based on our audil.

We conducted our andit in accordance with US. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plag and perform the andit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financisl statements, An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimaies made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. 'We believe our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

The financial statements referred to above do not inchude materials and supplies inventory, perlaining
primarily to the Special Revenue Funds, which should be included in order to conform with ULS. generaily
accepted accounting principles. The amounts of such inventory are not determinable,

In cur opinion, except for the omission of the materials and supplies inventory, the {inancial statements
referred to above presem fairly, i all material respects, the financial position of the governmental activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Buena Vista County at June 30, 2005, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, for the vear ended in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted acoounting prineipies.

In accordance with Covernment Anditing Standards, we have also issued our reporis dated November 3,
2005 on our consideration of Buena Vista County's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of ils
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the resuits of that testing and rot to provide an opinton on the internal control over {inancial

Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.




Management’s Discussion and Analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 6 through 11
and 3% through 40 are not required parts of the basic financial statements, but are supplementary information
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
required supplementary information. We did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise Buena Vista County’s basic financial statements. We previously audited, in accordance with the
standards referred Lo in the second paragraph of this report, the financial statements for the two years ended
June 30, 2003 (none of which are presented herein) and expressed qualified opinions on those financial statements
because of the omission of general fixed assets and materials and supplies inventory. We also previously audited,
in aceordance with the standards referred to in the second paragraph of this report, the {inancial statements for the
year ended June 30, 2004 (which is not presented herein) and expressed a qualified opinion on those financial
statements because the materials and supplies inventory was emitfed. Other supplementary information included
in Schedules 1 through 6, including the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards required by U.S. Office of
Management and Budget (OMB) Cireular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit

statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in refation to the basic financial

statements taken as a whole,
. o,
Hi%gw ; pmw "8.““‘6%3»

November 3, 2005



MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Buena Vista County provides this Management Discussion and Analysis of its financial statements. This
narrative overview and analysis of the linancial activities is for the fiscal vear ended June 30, 2005, We
encourage readers 1o consider this information in conjunction with the County’s financial statements, which

follow.

20058 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Buena Vista County’s governmental fund revenues increased $1,798,012 or 13.5%, from fiscal FY 04 of
which $620,385 was in intergovernmental revenues, including CDBG funds for Clay Regional Water
project, NRCS funding participation in secondary road projects, and [aw enforcement contract with
Sioux Rapids, among others.

Buena Vista County’s governmenta! fund expenditures increased $671,451 or 6.2% from FY™04,
inchuded were: the Buena Vista Regional Medical Center general abligation bonds advanced refunding
resulting in approximately $300,000 in additional debt service expenditures, and, the Clay Regional
Water project with expenditures of approximately $375.000.

Buena Vista County’s net assets increased $3,611,979, or approximately 56.0%, from June 30, 2604 to
June 31}, 2003, Included are an increase in the ending fund balance and infrastructure, plus a decrease in
long-term debt,

As noted last vear, after several years of veducing the General Fund ending balance through reduced fax
asking, the taxes were increased in both FY 04 and FY’05 to restore it 1o a sufficient level to meet the
cash flow needs of the county between July 1 and the September 30 tax collection deadline (25% of the
expenditure year). Bucna Vista County increased property taxes for 2005 by $360,736, a 6.4% increase.
{Note: In FY 06, the increase was Hmited 1o 7%, or the amount raised on the increase in valuation and
using FY 05 rates).

USING THIS ANNNUAL REPORT

The annual report consists of a series of financial statements and other information, as follows:

&

Management’s Discussion and Analysis introduces the basic financial statements and provides an
analytical overview of the County’s financial activities.

The Government-wide Financial Statements consist of a Statement of Net Assets and a Statement of
Activities. These provide information about the activities of Buena Vista County as a whole and present
an overall view of the County’s finances.

The Fund Financial Statements tell how governmental services were financed in the short tenm as well as
what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements report Buena Vista County’s operations in
more detail than the government-wide statements by providing information about the most significant
Funds, The remaining statements provide financial information about activities for which Buena Vista
County acts solely as an agent or custodian for the benefit of those outside of County government
{Agency Funds).

Notes 1o financial statements provide additional information essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the basic financial statements.

Required Supplementary Information further explaing and supports the financial statements with a
comparisen of the County’s budget for the year.

Other Supplementary Information provides detailed information about the non-major funds and the
individual Agency Funds. In addition, the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards provides details
of various programs benefiting the County.



REPORTING THE COUNTY S FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

CGovernment-wide Financial Staiements

One of the most important guestions asked about the County’s finances is, “Is the County as a whole better off
ar worse off as a result of the vear’s activities?” The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities
report information that heips answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the
acciual basis of accounting and the economic resources measurement focus, which is similar to the accounting
used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account,
regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The Statement of Net Assets presents all of the County’s assets and Habilities, with the difference between the
two reported as “net assets™, Over time, increases or decreases in the County's 1iet assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving or deteriorating,

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the County’s net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the change occurs, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will
not result in cash flows until future fiscal periods.

The County’s governmental activities are presented in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities, Governmental activities include public safety and legal services, physical health and socia} services,
mental health, county environment and education, roads and transportation, governmental services to residents,
administration, interest on long-term debt, and non-program activities. Property tax and state and federal grants
finance most of these activities,

Fund Financial Statemenis
The County has three kinds of funds:

1) Governmental funds account for most of the County’s basic services. These focus on how money flows
info and out of those funds, and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. The governmental
funds include: 1) the General Fund, 2) the Special Revenue Funds, such as Memntal Health, Rural Services and
Secondary Roads, 3) the Debt Service Fund, and 4) the Capital Projects Fund. These funds are reported using the
current financial resources measurement focus and the modified acerual basis of accounting, which measures cash
and 2l other financial assets that can readily be converted 10 cash. The governmental fund financial stalements
provide a detailed, short-term view of the County’s general governmental operations and the basic services it
provides. Governmental fund information helps determine whether there are more or fower financial resources
that can be spent in the near future to finance the County’s programs.

The required financial statements for governmental funds include a balance sheet and s statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances.

2y Proprictary funds account for the County’s Internal Service Fund, Employee Group Health, Internal
Service Funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the County’s

vartous functions.

The required financial statements for proprietary funds include a statement of net assets, a statement of
revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net assets, and a statement of cash flows.

3} Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trust or agency capacity for others which canuof be used
to support the County’s own programs. These fiduciary funds include Agency Funds that account for emergency
management services and the County Assessor, 10 name a few.

The required financial statements for fiduciary funds include a statement of fiduciary assets and labilities.
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Reconciliations between the povernment-wide financial statements and the furd financial statements follow
the fund financial statements,

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL AMNALYSIS

Met Assets of Governmental Activities

Jupe 30,
2003 2004
Current and other assets 512,634,778 $11,400,033
Capital assets G 559712 7815475
Total asseis 22.194.49¢ 19,215 508
Long-term labilittes 5.650 849 6,331,190
Other liabilities £.47¢ 508 0,432,155
Total liabilities 12,130,357 12,763,354
Net assets

invested in capiial assets, net of related delst 9.008.653 7,213,079
Restricted 4,604,228 3,801,699
Emrestricted {3,548 748) {4,652,624)

Total net assets $10.064.133 $ 6482 154

Changes in Net Assets of Governmental Activities

Year Ended June 30,

2003 2004
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges Tor service $ 1,094,826 $ 1.238.371
Operating grants, contributions, and restricted inferest 4,304,044 4,308,234
Capital grants, contributions, and restricied interest 2,720,192 1,030,833
Greneral revenues:
Property tax 5,828,385 5,510,117
Penalty and interest on property tax 99,399 39 405
Local option sales tax 563,711 629,453
State tax credits 316,943 285772
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific purposes 24,367 123,796
Unrestricted investment eamnings 41,268 132,333
Chher general revenues 61,636 8,440
Total revenues 15104776 13,306 764
Program expenses:
Pubiic safety and legal services 2,044,276 1,937,131
Physical health and social services 1,044,160 1,083,876
Mental health 1,259,234 1,165,637
County environment and education 498,328 331,304
Roads and transportation 2,423,980 2,812,477

&



Governmental services to residents 460,487 453 350

Administration 1.066,731 a4 7R
Non-program 2,487,712 1,422,975
Interest on long-term debt 207,850 290,194
Total expenses 11,492 797 10,691,826

Increase in net asscts 3,611,979 2,614,838
Net assets beginning of vear, as restated 6,452.154 3837316
Net assets end of vear $10.064,133 $ 6452154

The cost of all governmental activities this vear was $11,492,757.
As noted earlier, net assets may serve over dme as a usefu] indicator of financial position. Buena Vista
County's net assets increased from $6,452,154 to $10,064,133. The largest portion of the County’s net assets is

the invested in capital assets (e.g., land, infrastructure, buildings and equipment), less the related debt

INDIVIDUAL MAJOR FUND ANALYSIS

As Buena Vista County completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of
$3,914,270, an increase of $1,122.913 above FY'047s total of $4,781,357. The increase in fund balance is due fo
the property tax increase and accumulated funds in the Secondary Road fund for a 2006 gravel project. The
following are the major reasons for the changes in fund balances of the major funds from the prior year:

o From FY 04 10 FY 035, General Fund expenditures decreased $119,347, and revenues increased $301,423.

FY'05 revenues exceeded expenditures by $987,556, Other financing sources/uses are not reflected in
this total. The ending fund balance showed an increase of $663,552 over the prior year,

o Rural Fund expenditures decreased $101,551, and revenues decreased $32,951. The ending fund balance
increased $91,901. FY 04 included a one time $80,000 Innevation Fund grant for a new Comprehensive
Plan project.

e Secondary Roads Fund expenditures increased $88,348, and revenues increased $254,581. The ending
fund balance increased §752,975.,

o Debt Service Fund expenditures increased $386,324, and revenues decreased 19,271, The ending fund
halence decreased $327,842, With the re-financing of the Buena Vista Regional Medical Center general
obligation bonds, the due date for payments was changed from Sept. 1 and March 1, fo after lax
collections. The accumulated funds were used to buy down the amount of re-issued bonds.

G



BUDGETARY HIGHEIGHTS

Daring FY'08, Buena Vista County amended its budget 2 rimes. The first amendment, which was approved

December 14, 2004, increased revenue by $1,288, 801, operating transfers in by $121,997, expenditures by

$1,348,904, and operating transfers out by §121,997.

The second amendment, which was approved May 24, 2005, increased general long-term debt proceeds by
$262,200, operating transfers in by $161,261, expenditures by 8461639, and operating transfers out by §161,261.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At June 30, 2005, Buena Vista County had approximately 9.6 mitiion invested in & broad range of capital
assets, including public safety equipment, buildings, park facilities, roads and bridges. This is a net increase

(including additions and deletions) of $1,744,237 or 22.3 percent over last yeay.

Capital Assets of Govermmental Activities at Year End
(Expressed in Thousands)

Jung 30,

2005 2004
Land $ 564 § 521

Construction in progress 575 -
Buitdings and improvements 837 g71
Eguipment and vehicles 3,947 3.964
Infrastructure 3.637 2,459
Total 39,560 $7.813

This year’s major additions included (in thousands):
Capital assets contributed by the Jowa Depariment of Transportation
Resurfacing 620™ Street
Etk township bridge
Culverts
Secondary roads equipment
Haukens wildlife area land
Real estate softwars
Conservation vehicle
Voling equipment
Financial seftware
Jail architect

Total

$1,070
78

137
495
290
43

70

13

34

42

7
$2.279

The County had depreciation expense of $496,426 in FY05 and total accumulated depreciation of $3,170,046

at June 30, 2005,

More detailed information abour the County’s capital assets is presented in Note 5 to the financial statements.
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LONG-TERM DEBT

The County™s FY'05 statatory debt Hmif was 5% of the assessed valuation, or $47,200,124. At June 38,
2003, Buena Vista County had $4,821,994 in outstanding general obligation bonds, or 10.2% of capacity.
Ouistanding bonds included $4,270,935 for the Buena Vista Regional Medical Center addition and remodeling.
$480,000 for the lake dredee and equipment, $635,000 for the 2004 Capital Projects Loan, and $6.05% foan for a
Comprehensive Plan update. The County does not have a current bond rating.

(ther obligations include accrued vacation pay and compensatory time, and drainage district warrants.
Additional information about the County’s long-term debt is presented in Note 8 (o the financial statements,

ECONOMIC FACTORS

Information specific to Buena Vista County and previously available from the Towa Workforce Development
website regarding the unemployment rate, median wage, and other economic factors was not updated for 2005,
Information included in the 2004 audit was current only until 2003, and no changes have been posted on the web.

The following information was found at hitip:/wvew answers.com/Aopic/bueaa-vista-county-iowa  As of the
census of 2000, there were 20,411 people, 7,499 households, and 5,121 families residing in the county. The racial
makeup of the county was 88.00% White, 0.35% Black or African American 0.13% Native American, 4.33%
Asian, 0.01% Pacific Islander, 5.75% from other races, and 1.42% from two or more races. 12.34% of the
population was Hispanic or Latino of any race.

There were 7,499 houscholds out of which 31.90% had children under the age of 18 fiving with them,
57,50% were married couples living fogether, 7.20% had a female bouseholder with no husband present, and
31.70% were non- families, 27.00% of all households were made up of individuals and 13.20% had someone
living alone who was 65 years of age or older. The average household size was 2.54 and the average lamily size
was 10X,

In the county the population was spread out with 25,40% under the age of 18, 12.20% from 18 to 24, 25.40%
from 25 to 44, 20.20% from 45 to 64, and 16.90% who were 65 years of age or older. The median age was 36
years. For every 100 females there were 100.40 males. For every 100 females age 18 and over, there were 97.40
males.

The median income for a bousehold in the county was $33,300, and the median income for a family was
$41,549. Males had a median income of $29,172 versus $20,252 for females. The per capita income for the
county was $16,042. 10.50% of the population and 7.60% of familics were below the poverty Hine. 12.60% of
those under the age of 18 and 7.60% of those 65 and older were living below the poverty line.

The June, 2003 consumer price index was 180.5, or 3.5% higher than June, 2004,

CONTACTING THE COUNTY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a general
overview of Buena Vista County’s finances and to show the County’s accountability for the money it receives. If
you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Buena Vista County
Auditors Office, 215 E. 5% St., P.O. Box 220, Storm Lake, Towa, 50588,

b1



BUENA VISTA COUNIY
STATEMENT OF NET ASSELS Exhibit A
JUNE 30, 2003

Governmental

Agtivities
ASSETS
Cash and pooled investments § 5480933
Eeceivables:
Property tax:
Delinguent 21,320
Succeeding vear 5,922,585
Interest and penalty on property tax 66,831
Agcounts 43,952
Accrued interest 13,006
Dirainage asscssments 32,644
Dse from other vovernments 1,0G7.103
Prepaid tnsurance 46,400
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 93539712
Total assets 22194490
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 273873
Accrued interest payable 52,118
Salaries and benefits payable 537714
e to other governments 116,804
Deferred revenue:
Succeeding year property ax 5,922 585
Other 60,414
Long-term Habilities:
Portion due or payable within one year:
General obligation bonds 456,471
Compensated absences 32138
Portion due or payable after one year:
(ieneral obligation bonds ' 4,365,523
Drainage warrants/drainage improvement certificates payable 07,720
Total liabilities 12130357
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 9,008,653
Restricted for:
Suppicmental levy purposes 512,815
Secondary roads purposes 3,176,141
Pabt service 85,331
Other purposes 829,901
Unrestricted (Note 20) _(3.548,748)
Total net assets $ 10,064,133

See notes fo financial statements.
12



Functions/Programs
Governmental activities:
Public safety and lezal services
Physical health and social services
Mental heaith
County snvirenment and education
Roads and iransporiation
Governmental services 1o residents
Adminstration
Mon-program
Interest on long-term debt
Totai

Genersl Revenues:

Properly and other county tax levied for

{eners] purposes
Debt service

Penalty and interest on property tax
Srate tax credits
Local option sales tax
Grants and contributions not

o speeific purpose
Unrestricted investroent earnings
Miscellaneous

Total general revenues
Change is net assels
Net assets beginning of year

Met assets end of year

BUENA VISTA COUNTY
SL_LEMLEL% ACTIVITIES

CNDIRD AUTNE 30, 3005

Program Revenues

COperating Grants, Capital Granis,

Exhibit B

Net {Fapense)

esiricted

Contributions, Contributiops,  Revenuve and

Charges for  and Restricted and Restricied “hanges in
$ 2044276 8 90,581 & 133299 § - § (1,820.398)
1,044,196 20,491 442 952 - {271,747}
1,239,234 10,643 860,741 - (387,845
498,328 1,906 22,783 13,670 (459,959)
2,433 986 G012 2,722,963 1,597,441 1,803,438
460,487 315,268 112,693 34,089 1,563
1,066,731 370G 8618 - {1,057,745%)
2,487,712 337,553 ~ 1,074 992 {1,075,167)
207,859 - - - {207,859}
$11.492,797 § 1094826 § 4304048 § 2720192 (3,373,730
5,257,677

571,308

99,399

316,643

563,711

24,387

$1.268

61.636

6,985,719

13

See notes 10 financial stalerents.
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6,452,154

$ 10,064,133



BUENA VISTA COUNTY
Mﬁjﬂihﬁi

" JLINE 30,2005

Bahibit C

Special Revenue
Rurat Seconda Debt
ASSLIS
Cash and pooled investments $1,117,332 % 201,494 32828456 % B5425¢ § 1038039 % 5269580
Recelvables:
Property tax
Delinguent 14175 2.817 - 2,334 1,994 21,329
Succeeding year 3631282 1,182,574 - 598,013 510,716 5,922,585
interest and penally on property tax 66,831 - - - 66,831
Accounts 40,338 - 1,213 - 1.575 43,128
Accrued interest 12,610 - - 125 12,735
Drainage assessments - - - - 12,644 32,644
Diue from other govemments 225234 68206 352,064 - 161,351 1,007,185
Frepald expenses 77.612 34 16,852 - 1,841 96,339
Toial assets $5,185464 $1,435125 533083588 5§ 684606 § 1.748485 $ 12472365
AR TTIE
iabilities:
Accounts pavable 50123 5 Wi & 6847 5 - £ 128431 5 235322
Tnterest payable - - - - 30855 30,935
Salaries and benefits payable 26,938 2,639 21,497 “ 2636 53,714
Due 1oy other governmonts 0,840 - - - 105,604 116,804
Deferred revenue:
Succeeding vear property tax 3,631,282 1,182,574 - 398,013 510,716 5,922,585
Oiher 80,822 40,651 19,430 2,154 34,518 77,615
‘Fotal labiliries 1805006 1225565 108,574 6,207 R13.243 6,557,955
Furud balances:
Reserved for
Supplemental levy purposes 511,862 53 - - - 517 815
Drainage warrants - - - - (101,204} 101,204)
Future expenditures - - - - 96,628 9&,6..‘,
Unreserved, reported i
Giencral fund 864,596 - - - ~ 564,596
Special revenue funds - 228207 3285011 - 936,020 4,453,238
Dhebt service fund - - - 84,359 . 84,359
Capifal projects fund - - - - 3,793 3.798
Total fund balances 1,376,458 229150 3289011 84399 0357247 5914270
Total liabilities and fund balancas $3,185.464 $1.455,125 $3398585 § 684,606 § 1,748,485 § 12472265

See notes 1o financ
i4

ial stgtoments.



BUENA VISTA COUNTY

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL

FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Total governmental fund balances

JUNE 30, 2005

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net

Assets are different becanse:

Capiial assets, used in governmental activities are not current Hinancial

resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. The cost of assets is

$12,726,75% and the accumulated depreciation is 53,170,046

Other long-term assets are not available to pay current period expenditures

and, therefore, are deferved in the funds,

The Internal Service Fund is used by management to charge the costs of
partial self funding of the County’s health insurance benefit plan to

individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the Internal Service Fund are

included in governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets.

Long-term liabilities, including notes payable, accrued inferest payable,
compensated absences payable, and drainage warrants payable,
are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not

reported in the funds.

Net assets of governmental activities

See notes to financial statements.
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BUENAVISTA COUNTY

STATEMENT OF REVINLES, EXPENDITURES. AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
YEAR ENDED JLINE 30, 2005

Special Revenue

Exhibit E

Rurgd Secondary Debt
Revenues
Property and other County fax $ 36967223 % 1,365671 8 - S FT0RE0 ST755.9DF 36388682
Iyterest and penalty on property tax 34702 - - 34,702
Intergovernments] 1,137,777 70,864 3070317 224232 1518739 6021529
Licenses and permits 26,157 1,700 4923 - 32,782
Charges for service 484 068 4600 161,010 - 23,817 673,493
Use of meney and property 142,045 - 59 7223 1771 151,068
Miscelianeous 46,742 15,278 2397 - 290900 367.117
Total revenues 5,561,714 1,458,113 32356708 R(O2325 2501135 13.670,008
Eapenditores:
Operating:
Public safety and legal services 1,807,692 108,706 - - - 1,916,398
Phvsical health and social sevvices 1,022,158 - - 236 1,022,394
Mental health - . - - 1,255,061 1,255,061
County environment and education 222,703 234,533 1,830 34,874 463,560
Roads and transportation 2983 - 3,048,800 - - 3,051,873
Governmental services 1o residenis 449430 3,092 - . 432522
Adminisiration 967 640 - - - 11,795 979,435
Non-program 33,082 - 978,565 - 1,128763 2138420
Debt service 68,450 - - 1,187,132 - 1,265,392
Capital projects - - - - 237,978 257,978
Total expenditures 4,574,158 346,331 4025308 1,197,132 2,689,707 12,833,633
Excess (deficiency) of rovenues over expendifures 987 556 1,111,782 {(7169.597) {394.797y (98570 836,372
{her financing sources (uses):
Sale of assets - - 1,359 - - 1,339
Operating transfers in (0wt} {322,004 (1DI988Iy 1,321,213 - {179,328} -
General obligation bond proceeds - - - 4,525 600 63000 4,390,000
Payments 1 bond gscrow - - - 4,458,043 ~ (14580435
Drzinage disirict warrants - - - - 163227 163,227
Total other financing sources {uses) (322004 {1018881) 1572572 66,955 48,899 206,341
Net change in fund balances 665,352 91,801 52,975 (327,847) {49673y 1,132,913
Fund balances, beginning of vear 710806 137239 2336015 412241 9R4915 4781357
Fund balances, end of vear § 1376458 3 229160 S$3280011 % £4,300 5033242 §5,914.270
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BUENA VISTA COUNTY

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENULES,

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 20035

Net change in fund balances - Total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of
Activities are different becaunse:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while
govermunental activitics report depreciation expense to allocate those
expenditures over the life of the assets. Capital outlay expenditures and
contributed capital assets exceeded depreciation expense in the current
vear as fotlows:

Expenditures for capital assets
Capital assets contributed by the lowa Department of Transportation
Depreciation expense

Because some revenues will not be collected for several months after the
County’s year end, they are not considered available revenues and are
deferred in the governmental funds as follows:

Property tax
Other

Proceeds from issuing long-term liabilities provide current financial
resources to governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term
liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. Repayment of long-term
liabilities is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment
reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. Current year
repayments exceeded issued as follows:

Issued

Repaid

Deferred charges on refinanced debt
Amortization of deferred charges

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the
use of current fnancial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in governmentel funds, as follows:

Change in compensated absences
Change in interest on long-term debt

The Internal Service Fund is used by management to charge the costs of
employee health benefits to individual fonds. The change in net assets of

the Internal Service Fund is reported with governmental activities.

Change in net assets of governmental activities

See notes 1o Anancial statements,
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1,744,237

71456

52.275

e A8L07T)

$3,611.979




ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Interest receivabie

(Other recervables

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Deferred revenue
Total Habilities

Unrestricied

BUENA VISTA COUNTY
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUND
JUINE 30, 2005

See notes to Nnancial statements.
ig

Exhibit G
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BUENA VISTA COUNTY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS Exbibit H
PROPRIETARY FUND |
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Internal
Service-
Employee
Group
[lealih
Operating revenues:
Reimbursements from operating funds § 611,447
Reimbursements from employees 276,191
Total operating revenues 887,638
Operating expenses:
Medical claims and administrative fees 971,768
Operating loss {84,130
Non-operating revenues:
Interest income 3053
Net foss (81,077)
Net assets beginning of year 224117
Net assets end of year _ $ 143.040

See notes to financial statements,
19



BUENA VISTA COUNTY
STATEMENT OF CASHILOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND Exhibit 1
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Toternal
Service-
Employee
Group
Health
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from operating fund reimbursements and employees $ 923702
Cash payments for medical claims and administrative fees 952,502
Net cash used in operating activities (29,200)
Cash lMows from investing aetivities:

Interest on investments o 3b4y
Net decrease in cash and cash eguivalents (26,159)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 237314
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 5 211,355

Reconciliation of operating loss 1o net cash
used in operating activities:
Operating income S (B4,13D)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash used in operating activities:

{Increase) in accounts receivable (827)

Increase in accounts payable 17,550

Increase in deferred revenue 38,207
Net cash used in operating activities $ (29,200

See notes o financial statements,
20



BUENA VISTA COUNTTY

ASSETS
Cash and pooled investments:
County treasurer
Cither County officials
Receivables:
Property tax:
Drelinquent
Succeeding year
Accounts
Phe from other governgients

Total assets

LIABILLITIES
Accounts payable

Salaries and beneflis pavable

Due to other governments
Trusts payable
Total Habilities

Net Assets

PFIRUCTARY ASSELS AND LIABILITIES

AGENCY FUNDS
JLIONE 30,2005

See notes to financial statements,
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$ 1,094,22
44,051

67,334
15,658 464
§9.152

16,990,998
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Ho6
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BUENA VISTA COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2005

(1} Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Buena Vista County is a political subdivision of the State of lowa and operates under the Home Rule
provisions of the Constitution of Towa. The County operates under the Board of Supervisors form of
government. Flections are on a partisan basis. Other elected officials operate independently with the Board
of Supervisors. These officials are the Auditor, Treasurer, Recorder, Sheriff, and Antorney. The County
provides nuinerous services to citizens, including law enforcement, health and social services, parks and
cultural activities, planning and zoning, roadway constraction and maintenance, and general administrative
SETVices.

The County’s financial statements are prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

A.  Reporting Entity

For financial reporting purposes, Buena Vista County has included all funds, organizations, agencies,
hoards, commissions, and authorities. The County has also considered all potential component units for
which it is financially accountable, and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their
relationship with the County are such that exclusion would cause the County's financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has set forth criteria to be
considered in determining financial accountability. These criteria include appeinting a voting majority
of an organization's governing body, and (1) the ability of the County to impose its will on that
organization or {2) the potential for the organization to provide specific benefits fo, or impose specific
financial burdens on, the County.

These financial statements present Buena Vista County {the primary government) and its component
units. The component units discussed below are included in the County's reporting entity because of the
significance of their operational or financial relationships with the County.

Blended Component Units - The following component units are entities which are legally separate from
the County, but are so intertwined with the County that they are, in substance, the same as the County.
They are reported as part of the County and blended into the appropriate funds.

Two hundred forty-one drainage districts have been established pursuant to Chapter 468 of the Code of
Towa for the drainage of surface waters from agricultural and other lands or the protection of such lands
from overflow. Although these districts are legally separate from the County, they are controlled,
managed, and supervised by the Buena Vista County Board of Supervisors, The draimage districts are
reported as a Special Revenue Fund. Financial information of the individual drainage districts can be
obtained from the Buena Vista County Auditor's office.

Jointly Governed Organizations -The County also participates in several jointly governed organizations
that provide goods or services to the citizenry of the County but do not meet the criteria of a joint
venture since there is no ongoing financial interest or responsibility by the participating governments.
The County Board of Supervisors are members of or appoint representatives to the following boards and
commissions: Buena Vista County Assessor's Conference Board, Buena Vista County Joint Disaster
Services Commission, Buena Vista County Empowerment Board, Buena Vista County Solid Waste
Commission, Northwest Towa Multicounty Regional Juvenile Detention Center, and Buena Vista
County E911 Service Board. Financial transactions of these organizations are included in the County's
financial statements only to the extent of the County's fiduciary relationship with the organization and,
as such, are reposted in the Agency Punds of the County.




BUENA VISTA COUNTY
NOTES TG FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1Y Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - (Continued)

B.  Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements - The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities report information on ail of the nonfiduciary activities of the County and iis component
units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.
Governmental activities are supported by property tax, intergovernmental revenues and other
nonexchange transactions.

The Statement of Net Assets presents the County’s nonfiduciary assets and ltabilities, with the
difference reported as net assets. Net assets are reported 1n three calegories.

Fnvested in capital assets, net of velated debr consists of capital assets net of accnmulated
depreciation and reduced by outstanding balances for bonds, notes and other debt attributable
to the acquisition, construction, or inprovement of those assets.

Restricied net assets result when constraints placed on net asset use are either externally imposed
or imposed by law through constitutional provisious or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net assets consist of net assets that do not meet the definition of the two preceding
categories. Unrestricted net assets offen have constraints on resources imposed by management
which can be removed or modified,

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
are offset by program revenues. Divect expenses arc those clearly identifiable with a specific function.
Program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit
from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function and (2) grants, contributions and
interest restricted 1o meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Property
tax and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
reverues,

Fund Financial Statements - Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds,
propriefary Tunds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter ave exciuded from the governmaont-wide
financial statements. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
finapcial statements. All remaining governmental funds are aggresated and reported as nonmajor
governmental funds.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund 1s the general operating fund of the County. All general tax revenues and other

revenues oot allocated by law or contractual agreement to some other fund are aecounted for in this
fund. From the fund are paid the general operating expenditures, the fixed charges, and the capital
mmprovement costs that are not paid from other funds.

Special Revenue;
The Rural Services Fund is used to account for property tax and other revenues to provide
services which are primarily mtended to benefit those persons residing in the county outside of
incorporated city arcas,

The Secondary Roads Fund is used 10 account for secondary road construction and mainienance.
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BUENA VISTA COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
20, 2003

(1Y Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - (Continued)

B.

Basis of Presentation - (Continued)

The Pebt Service Fund is utilized to account for the payment of interest and principal on the
County’s general lopg-lerm debt.

Additionally, the County reports the following funds:
The Menial Health Fund is used to account for property tax and other revenues designated {o be
uged to fund mental health, mental retardation, and developmental disabilities services.

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for all resources used in the acquisition and
construction of capital facilities.

Proprietary Fund - An Internal Service Fund is utilized to account for the financing of goods or
services purchased by one department of the County and provided to other departments or
agencies on a cost reimbursement basis,

Fiduciary Funds - Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the County as an agent for
individuals, private organizations, certain jointly governed organizations. other governmental

units and/or other funds.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The government-wide, proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the acernal basis of accounting, Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows. Property fax is recognized as revenue in the year for which it is levied. Grants and similar
items arc recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have
boen satisfied.

Governmental fund Hnancial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available, Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible witlun the
current period or spon enough thereafter to pay labilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
County considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days after year end.

Property tax, intergovernmental revenues, (shared revenues, grants and reimbursements from other
governments) and interest are considered to be susceptible to accrual.  All other revenue items are
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the County.

Expenditures generally are recorded when a Hability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However,
principal and interest on long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences are recorded
as expenditures only when payment is due. Capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in
governmental Tunds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are
reported as other financing sources.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the County funds certain programs by a combination of specific
cost-reimbursement granis, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus, when program
expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net assets available to finance the
program. It is the County’s policy 1o first apply cost-reimbursements grant resources to such programs,
followed by categorical block grants, and then by genernl revenues.
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BUENA VISTA COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - (Continued)

C.

b3

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting - {Contined)

The proprietary fund of the County applics all applicable GASB pronouncements, as well as the
following pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless these pronouncements
conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements: Financial Accounting Standards Board Statements
and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulleting of the
Committee on Accounting Procedure.

Proprictary funds distingaish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of
the County’s Internal Service Fund is charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses
for internal service funds inchide the cost of services and administrative expenses. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

The County mainiains its financial records on the cash basis. The financial statements of the County are
prepaved by making memorandum adjusting entries to the cash basis financial records.

Assets. Liabilities, and Fond Equity

The following accounting policies are followed in preparing the combined halance sheet:

Cash, Pooled Investments, and Cash Tquivalents - The cash balances of most County funds are
pooled and invested. Interest earned on investments is recorded in the General Fund, uniess
otherwise provided by law. Investments are stated at fair value except for the investment in the
Iowa Public Agency Investment Trust which is valued at amortized cost, and non-negotiable
certificates of deposit which are stated at cost.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all short-term cash investments that are highly liquid
are considered Lo be cash equivalents, Cash eguivalents are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash, and at the day of purchase, they have a maturity date no longer than three months.

Property Tax Receivable ~ Property tax in governmental funds fs accounted for using the modified
accrual basis of accounting.

Property tax receivable is recognized in these funds on the levy or tien date, which is the date the
tax asking is certified by the County Board of Supervisors. Delinquent property tax receivable
represents unpaid taxes for the current and prior years. The succeeding year property tax
receivable represents taxes certified by the Board of Supervisors to be collected in the next fiscal
year for the purposes set oul in the budget for the next {iscal year. By statute, the Board of
Supervisors is required to certify its budget in March of each year for the subsequent fiscal year.
However, by statute, the tax asking and budget certification for the following fiscal year becomes
effective on the first day of that year. Although the succeeding year property tax receivable has
been recorded, the related revenue is deferred in both the government-wide and fund financial
statements and will not be recognized as revenue wntil the year for which it is levied.

o]
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BUENA VISTA COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30,2005

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - {Continued)

D

Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equily - (Continued)

Property tax revenues recognized in these funds become due and collectible in September and
March of the fiscal year with a 1%4% per month penalty for delinquent payments; is based on
January 1, 2003 assessed properly valuations; is for the tax accrual period July 1, 2004 through
June 30, 2005; and reflects the tax asking contained in the budget certified by the County Board of
Supervisors in March, 2004,

lnterest and Penalty on Property Tax Receivable - Interest and penalty on property tax receivable
represents the amount of interest and penalty that was due and payable but has not been collected.

Drainage Assessments Receivable - Drainage assessments receivable represent amounts assessed
to individuals for work done on drainage districts which benefit their property. These assessments
are payable by individuals in not less than ten nor more than twenty annual installments. Each
annual installment with interest on the unpaid balance is due on Septermber 30, and is subject to the
same interest and penalties as other taxes. Drainage assessments receivable represent assessments
which are due and payable but have not been collected.

Due from and Due to Other Funds - During the course of its operations, the County has numerous
transactions between funds. To the extent that certain transactions between funds had not been
paid or received as of June 30, 2005, balances of interfund amounis receivable or payable have
heen recorded in the fund financial statements.

Due from Other Governments - Due from other governments represents amounts due from the
State of Towa, various shared revenues, grants, and reimbursements from other governments.

Capital Assets - Capital assets, which include property, equipment and vehicles, and infrastructure
assets (e.g., roads, bridges, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, and similar items which are immovable and
of value only to the government), are reported in the governmental activities column in the
government-wide Statement of Net Assets. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at
estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The cogts of normal maintenance and repair
that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.
Reportable capital assets are defined by the County ag assets with initial, individual costs in excess
of the following thresholds and estimated useful lives in excess of two years.

Asset Class Amount
Infrastructure $65.000
Land, buildings, and improvements 25,000
Eguipment and vehicles 5,000
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BUEMNA VISTACOUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1} Soummary of Significant Accounting Policies - (Continued)

1D, Agsets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity - (Continved)

Capital assets of the County are depreciated using the straight line method over the following
estirnated usefud lves:

Estimated
Usetul Lives
Asset Class (nY
Buildings 50
Building improvements 30
Infrastructure 65
Eguipment 5-20
Vehicles 4n13

Due to Other Governments - Due to other governments represents taxes and other revenues
collected by the County. and payments for services which will be remitted to other governments.

Trusts Payable - Trusts payable represents amounts due to others which are held by various County
officials in fiduciary capacities unti! the underlying legal matters are resoived.

Deferred Rovenue - Although eertain revenues are measurable, they are not available. Available
means collected within the current period or expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be
used 1o pav Hahilities of the current period. Deferred revenue in the governmentat fund financial
statements represents the amount of assets that have been recognized, but the related revenue has
not been recognized since the assets are not collected within the current period or expected to be
collected soon enough thereatter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Deferred
revenue consists of succecding year property tax receivable, as well as delinquent property fax
receivables and other recefvables not collected within sixty days alter vear end.

Compensated Absences - County employees accummdate a imited amouni of carned but unused
vacation and sick leave hours for subsequent use or for payment upon termination, death, or
refivement. A liability is recorded when ncurred in the government-wide, proprietary fund, and
fiduciary fund financial statements. A hability for these amounts is reported in governmental fund
finanecial statements only for employees that have resigned or retired. The compensated absences
liability has been compaied based on rates of pay in effect at June 3¢, 2005, The compensated
absences Hability aftributable to the governmental activities will be paid primarily by the General,
Mental Health, Rural Services, and Secondary Roads Funds.

Long-term Liabilities - In the government-wide and proprictary fund financial statements, long-
termy debt and other fong-terrm obligations are reported as Habilities in the applicable governmental
activities or proprietary fund Statement of Net Assets. Bond issuance costs are reported as
deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the governmental fund financial statements, the {ace amount of debt 1ssued is reported as other
Gnancing sources. Issuance costs, whether or pot withheld from the actual debt proceeds received,
are reported as deby service expenditures.
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BUENA VISTA COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE

Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies - (Continued)

D.  Assets, Liagbilities, and Fund Equity - {Continued)

Fund Equity - In the govermmental fund financial statements, reservations of fund balance are
reported for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside
parties for use for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative
management plans that are subject 1o change.

E. Budgets and Budeetary Accounting

The budgetary comparison and related disclosures are reported as Required Supplementary Information.

During the vear ended June 30, 2005, disbursements exceeded the amount budgeted in the debt service
function.

Cash and Pooled Investments

The County's deposits in banks at June 30, 2005 were entirely covered by federal depository insurance or by
the State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the Code of lowa. This chapter provides for
additional assessments against the deposttories to insure there will be no loss of public funds.

The County is authorized by statute to invest public funds in obligations of the United States government, its
agencies and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit or other evidences of deposit at federally insured
depository institutions approved by the Board of Supervisors; prime eligible bankers acceptances; certain
high rated commercial paper; perfected repurchase agreements; certain registered open-end management
investment companies; certain joint investment trusts; and warrants or improvement certificates of a drainage
districs,

Investments are stated at fair value. Securities traded on a national or international exchange are valued at
the last reported sales price at current exchange rates.

The County's investments at June 30, 2005 are as follows:

Fair
Type Value
Drainage warrants $ 3539

In addition, the County had investments in the Jowa Public Agency Investment Trust which are valued at an
amortized cost of $60,949 pursuant to Rule 2a-7 under the Investment Company Act of 1940,

Interest rate risk - The County’s investment policy limits the investment of operating funds {funds expected to
be expended in the current budget year or within 15 mosths of receipt) in instruments that mature within 397
days. Funds not identified as operating funds may be invested in investments with maturities longer than 387

days but maturities shall be consistent with the needs and use of the County,

Credit risk - The investment in lowa Public Agency Investment Trust is unrated.

Concentration of credit risk - The County places no limit on the amount that may be invested in any one
issuer.




BUENA VISTA COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2003

{3) Landfill Agreement

The County participates in an agreement with the Buena Vista County Solid Waste Commission, a potitical
subdivision created under Chapter 28F of the Code of fowa. The purpose of the Commission includes
providing economic disposal of solid waste produced or generated within the member county and
municipalities. Payments to that commission totaled $149,978 during the year ended June 30, 2005.

The County has guaranteed closure and post closure costs of the Jandfill as per Chapter 111.6(7) of the lowa
Code. The total costs have been estimated at approximately $181,840 and $849,300, respectively. The

landfill has an estimated remaining life of four years as of June 30, 2005,

(4} Interfund Transfers

The detail of interfund iransfers for the year ended June 30, 2005 is as follows:

Transfer to Transfer from Amount
General Special Revenue:
Secondary Roads & 124
Capital Projects o 70R3
e D207
Special Revenue:
Secondary Roads General 102,219
Special Revenue;
Rural Services 106,217
Local Option Secondary Roads 402 941

Conservation Land Acquisition General 23 83%

Capital Projects: General 203,154
Special Revenue:

Raural Services 3664

Total

Transfers generally move resources from the fund statutorily required to collect the resources to the fund
statutorily required to expend the resources,

(3) Capital Assels

Capital assets activity for the vear ended June 30, 2003 was as [bllows:

Balance Balance
Beginning Fnd
of Year Increases  Decreases of Year
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 321,324 § 42698 & - $ 364,022
Construction in progress - §75.0649 - 375,069
Total capital assets not being depreciated 521,324 617,767 - 1.139.09]
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BUENA VISTA COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2005

(51 Capital Assets - {Continued)

Balance Balance
Beginning End
af Year Increases  Deocreases of Year
Capital agsets being depreciated:
Buildings $ E728461 % - 5 . § 1,728 461
Fquipment and vehicles 5,855,157 372,910 (135,887) 6,092,180
Intrastructure 2.481.529 1.288.497 - 37026
Total capital assets being depreciated 10,065,147 1,661,407  (135887y _11.590.067

Less: accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings R56,925 34,569 - 891,494
Eguipment and vehicles 1,891,587 351,582 (97,370) 2. 145,773
Infrastructure 22,484 116,205 - 122779
Total accumulated depreciation 2,770,996 496 426 (97,3763 3.170.046
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 7,254 151 1,164,08] (38511 8420621

L

Governmental activities capital assets, net  §,.7.815475 81,782,748 § (38511 9,559 712

Depreciation expense was charged to the following functions:
Governmental activities:

Public safety and legal services $ 86,174
Physical health and soctal services 12,999
Mental health 1,438
County environment and education 61,905
Roads and transportaiion 305,574
Administration 28336

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 5496426

(6} Due to Other Governments

The County purchascs scrvices from other governmental units and also acts as a fee and tax collection agent
for various governmental units. The Agency Fund collections also inciude aceruals of property tax for the
succeeding year. Tax collections are remitied fo those govermments in the month following collection. A
summary of amounts due to other governments is as follows;

Fund Description Amonnt
General Services & 10,840

Special Revenue:
Mental Health Services
Total for governmental fonds

Ageney:
County Assessor Collections & 622344
Auto License and Use Tax 345 871
Community Colleges 584,578
Corporations 3,918,010
Schools 10,286,108
All other

Total for agency funds
30
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2003

(7) Special Revenug - Due From Other Crovernments

(%)

Included in this balance is $38,086 which represents an unsecured promissory note due from the Buena Vista
County Solid Waste Comumission. This interest-free Ioan is due in annuat instaliments of $4.700 due
August 1 cach year until August 1, 2012 when the remaining principal balance shall be paid in full.

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

A summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2005 is as follows:

Balance begin-

ning of vear Increascs

Drecreases

Balance,
end of vear

Pue within
One Year

Drainage warrants/improvement
cettificates/drainage disirict

deficit balances $ 344493 5 438309 § 275,082 § 507,720 5 -
General obligation bonds 5677396 4,525,000 5,126,337 5,076,059 456,471
Deferred charges on refinanced debt 1,77 255,842 (254,063} -
Compensated sbsences 309,310 11,825 - 321,133 321,135
Total $6,331,199 $4.976,911 $3,657,261 35,650,849 777,606

A, Bonds Payable

A summary of the County’s June 30, 2005 geperal obligation bonded indebtedness is as follows:

Year Ending  Interest
June 20, Rates Principal Interest Total

2006 2,00 - 309 § 456,471 % 185114 5 641585
2007 2.00 - 3.00 381,498 158,797 540,295
2008 2.00-3.30 396,529 147,366 543,895
2009 2.00 - 3350 406,561 135,319 341,880
2010 3.25-3.70 415,000 121,977 536,977
2011 330 -390 430,000 108,219 538,219
2012 3.375 -4.10 445 000 93,669 538,669
2013 140 -4.30 455,600 78,179 533,179
2014 3.500 400,000 62,079 462 079
2015 3.625 415,000 458,079 463 079
2016 3750 430,000 33,035 463,035
2017 3.800 445,000 16,910 461,910

Total $5,076,059 $£1.18874% 36,264 802

During the vear ended June 30, 2005 the County issued $4,523,000 in general obligation debt and

retired $3,380,402 of general oblipation debt,

On September 1, 1997, Buena Vista County issued $6,000,000 of general obligation bonds to pay for
remodeling and construction at Buena Vista Regional Medical Center. The county has a property tax
levy to pay the principal and interest on these bonds. During the year ended June 30, 2005, the County
entered into an escrow agrecment whereby the proceeds from general obligation refunding bonds were
converted into U.S. Securities. These sceurities and additional cash were placed in an escrow account
for the express purpose of paying the principal and interest on the refunded general obligation bonds as
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they become due. Afier the principal and interest on all of the outstanding bonds have been paid, the
remaining funds in the escrow account, together with any interest thercon, shall be returned fo the
County. The transactions, balances and liabilities of the escrow account are not recorded by the County.

The amount of the refunded general obligation bonds that was cousidered extinguished and, therefore,
excluded from long-term debt was $4,640,000 at June 30, 2005,

The reacquisition price exceeded the net carrying amount of the old debt by $235,842, This amount has
been netted against the new debt and is being amortized over the remaining life of the new debt issued,
which is shorter thap the life of the refunded debt. This advance refunding was undertaken to reduce
total debt service paviments over the next 16 years by $341,591.

Oun June 1, 2000, Buena Vista County issued $875,000 of general obligation bonds and loaned the
proceeds to Buena Vista County Solid Waste Commission. The Conumnission has agreed to pay all
interest and principal on the bonds on or before the due dates. The outstanding balance of $185,000 was
paid in full during the year ended June 30, 2003

B.  Drainage Warrants/Drainage Improvement Certificales Pavable

Drainage warrants are warrants which are legally drawn on drainage district funds but are not paid for
lack of funds, in accordance with Chapter 74 of the Code of Towa. The warrants bear interest at rates in
effect at the time the warrants are first presented. Warrants will be paid as funds arve available.

Drainage improvement certificates payable represent amounts die to purchasers of drainage
improvement certificates. Drainage improvement certificates are waivers that provide for a landowner
to pay an improvemeni assessment in installment payments over a designated number of years with
interest at a designated interest rate. The improvement certificates representing those assessments or
installments due from the landowner are sold for cash as inferest bearing certificates. Funds received
from the sale of certificates are used to pay outstanding registered warrants issued to contractors who
perform work on drainage district improvements and registered warrants issued for other related costs.
Dirainage improvement certificates are redeemed and interest paid to the bearer of the certificate upon
receipt of the instaltment payment plus interest, from the landowner.

Divainage warrants and drainage improvement certificates are paid from the Special Revenue Fund
solely from drainage assessiments against benefited propertics.

(%) Pension and Retirement Benefits

The County contributes to the fowa Public Employees Retirement System (JPERS) which is a cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of Jowa. IPERS provides
retirement and death benefits which are established by State statute to plan members and beneficiaries.
IPERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information, The report may be obtained by writing to IPERS, P.O. Box 9117, Des Moines,
LA, 50306-9117.
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BUENA VISTA COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2005

Pension and Retiremnent Benefits - (Continued)

Plan members are required to contribute 3.70% of their annual covered satary and the County is reguired 1o
contribute 5.75% of anrual covered payroil except for law enforcement employees, in which case the
percentages for the year ended June 30, 2005 are 5.10% and 7.66%, respectively. For the year ended June 30,
2004, the contribution rates for law enforcement employees and the County were 4.99% and 7.48%,
respectively, and for the year ended June 30, 2003, the contribution rates for law enforcement employees and
the County were 5.37% and 7.48%, respectively. Contribution requirements are established by State statute.
The County’s contribution to IPERS for the years ended June 30, 2005, 2004, and 2003 were 237,187,
$239.675, and $230.844 respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

Risk Management

Buena Vista County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft, damage 1o and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injurtes to employees; and natural disasters. These risks are covered by the
purchase of commercial insurance. Settled claims from these risks have not exceeded commercial msurance
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. The County assumes liability for any deductibles and claims i
excess of coverage limitations.

Emplovee Health Insurance Plan

The Internal Service, Fmployee Group Health Fund was established to account for the self funding of the
County's health insurance benefit plan. The plan is funded by both employee and County contributions and 1s
administered through a service agreement with Wellmark, The agreement is subject to automatic renewal
provisions. The County assumes liability for claims up to the individual stop loss limitation of $35,000.
Claims in excess of coverage are insured through purchase of stop loss insurance.

Monthly payments of service fees and plan contribution to the Employee Group Health Fund are recorded as
expenditures from the operating funds. Under the administrative services agreement, monthly payments of
service fees and claims processed are paid to Wellmark from the Employee Group Health Fund. The
County's contribution to the fund for the year ended June 30, 2003 was $645,701.

Amounts payable from the Employee Group Health Fund at June 30, 2005 total $17,551, which is for
reported but not paid claims. The reserve for catastrophic losses was $143,040 at June 30, 2005 and is
reported as a designation of the Employee Group Health Fund retained earnings. A Hability has been
established based on the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement Number 10,
which requires that a Hability for claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial
statements indicates that it is probable that a lHability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements
and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Settlements have not exceeded the stop-loss
coverage in any of the past three years. A reconciliation of changes in the aggregate lability for claims for
the current vear is as follows:

Unpaid claims at July 1, 2004 $ -
Incurred claims G71,769
Payment on claims during the fiscal year 954018

Unpaid claims at June 30, 20035
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TUNE 30, 2005

(12) Joimly Governed QOrganization

Buena Vista County participates in a 3-County Bmpowerment Board, which includes Crawford and Sac
Counties, a jointly governed organization formed pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 28E of the Code of
Towa. Financial transactions of this organization are included in the County’s financial staiements as an
agency fund because of the County’s fiduciary relationship with the organization. The following financial
data is for the year ended June 30, 2005:

Additions:

Contributions from governmental units:

School Ready grant 5320899
TANF grant 92,295 413,194
Miscellaneous reimbursements from private sources 3,149
Interest income 5,509
Teotal additions 421,852

Deductions:

Administration 73,144

Home management services 306,399

School ready grants 1,819

Sac City Public Library 9,578

Early childhood mini-grants 98,761

Educational and training services 2,363

Translating services 3,834

Transportation 6,286

Other 3.681 505,803
Net (84,013)
Balance begimning of year _ 245,459
Balance end of year 5161446

(13 Juvenile Detention Center

The County participates in the Northwest Jowa Multicounty Regional Juvenile Detention Center, @ political
subdivision creasted under Chapter 28F of the Code of lowa. The purpose of the Center is to establish and
maintain a juvenile detention facility and related services. The Center does not determine capital allocations
of the equity interest for individual participating jurisdictions. The Center issues separate financial
statemnents on the accrual basis, and the transactions of the Center are not included in the financial statements
of the County. The Center’s activity for the tiscal year ending June 30, 2005, which is the latest information
available, is sommarized as follows:

Net assets, beginning of vear $248,507
Revenues 541,657
Expenses _496.236
Net assets, end of year $293 928

The financial statements of the center are available at the Center's administrative office in Cherokee, lowa.
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BUENA VISTA COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2005

(14) Contingencics

A tawsuit alleges negligence in the application of gravel to a County road. The County’s insurance carrier is
defending the action of the County: however, no opinion has been made regarding the outcome of the case or
possible damages that might be awarded.

(15 Commitments

The County has entered into the following contracts which were not completed as of June 30, 2005

Costs Remaining
Total Incurred  Commitment

Contract As of As of

Project Amount 6-30-05 6-30-03
Grant township box culvert 5 91.480 $88,741 § 2745
Elk township box culvert 3612 81,104 2,508
Newell township pipe culvert 49,277 45,379 3,898
Purchase of motor grader 169,422 - 169,422
Purchase of tractor and mower 70,381 ~ 70,381
Sturry leveling 42,088 - 42 088
Grant township culverts 58,828 - 38,828
Bridge construction 183,533 - 183,533
Voting equipment, software, and training 201,265 34,089 167,206
Purchase of financial software and training 7220 42 292 29918
$1,022.132 $291,605 8730,527

The balance remaining at June 30, 2005 will be paid as work on the projects progresses,

(16} Community Development Block Grant Funds

On May 28, 2004 the County entered into an agreement with the lowa Department of Economic
Development to receive grant funds under the Community Development Block Grant Program totaling
$828,000. $580,000 of these funds are to be used for construction of a rural water disiribution system,
$228.,000 are to be used to connect the City of Rembrandt to this rural water system, and 520,000 are to be
used for the planning of this system. As of June 30, 2003, $795,395 of these funds had been recetved and
disbursed.

(17) Deficit Fund Balance

The Drainage District fund had a deficit balance of $4,576 at June 30, 2005, The deficit is because of
drainage warrants payable.

(18) Accounting Restatements

Beginning net assets for governmental activities has been restated to refleci a change in accounts payable.
This restatement is sunuparized below:
Amount
Net assets June 30, 2004, as
previously reported $6,322,734
Restatement of beginning accounts payable
Restated net assets June 30, 2004

35



BUENA VISTA COQUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2002

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting princ ipies requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reporied in the financial statements
and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Unrestricied Net Assets

As a result of debt which the County has issued for other governmental entities, the unrestricted net assets 1s a
deticit balance of $(3,548,748) at June 30, 2005. I not for the remaining balance on the debt issued for the
hospital, the unrestricted net assets at June 30, 2005 would reflect a surplus of $722,187.
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BUENA VISTA COUNTY.
BUDGETARY COMPARISON
SCHEDULL OF RECEIPTS, DISBURSEMENTS, AND
CHANGES IN BALANCES - BUDGET
AND ACTUAL (CASITBASIS) - ALL GOVERNMENTAL FINDS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
YEAR ENDED JLINE 34 2005

Less Funds
Not Required Finglto
i bhe Budgeted Amounis Net
Agtual Budgeted MNet Criginal Einal Yagance
Receipts:
Property and other Courdy tax % 6,402,340 8 - $6,402,340 § 6,348,111 56461649 F {59.309)
Interest and penally on property tax 34,801 - 34,801 30,200 30,200 4,601
Intergovernmentar 5,537,657 - 5,537,657 3,101,080 6273612 (737555}
Licenses and permits 35,430 - 35,430 27,101 27,101 8,329
Charges for service 599,271 - 599271 486,036 456,056 113,213
Use of money and property 140,529 - 140,329 156,856 106,850 13673
Miscellancous 580,469 285871 284751 546,431 3464311 {251 680}
Total receipts 13,330,497 285,718 13044779 12643824 13,933,905 {889,126}
Dishursemenis:
Public safety and legal services 1,951,109 - 1,851,109 2088917 2108478 137,369
Phvsaical health and social services 1,033,830 - 1,033,839 1,151,195 1,194,818 160,085
Mental heaith 1,264,420 - 1,260,420 1,330,431 1,330,451 70,031
County environment and education 45660 008 . 466 008 554,382 554,582 94,574
Roads and fransperiaticn 3,067,792 - 3,067,792 3441,000 3,636,000 368,208
Oovernmental services 1o residents 493,172 - 463,173 481,173 512,502 19130
Administration 987,549 - G87.549 1,064,237 1,101,371 113,822
Non-program 609,203 ~ 509,203 283250 1,212,148 502,937
Dbt gervice 1,191,414 . 1,191,414 849,641 878,641 {314,775
Capital projects 1,756,035 430,784 1,303,251 1,106,700 1,654 838 349 388
Total dishursements 12,816,532 450,784 12,339,748 12371276 14181810 1.RU2071
Fxeess {deficiency} of receipts over dishursements 519,965 {163,008} 685,031 274,548 {247.914) 932 945
Other finiencing sources, net 230,482 163,227 87 255 500 262 500 {195 2453
Tixeess {deficiency) of receipts and other financing
sources over disbursements and other financing uses 750,447 {1,839} 752,286 275,048 14,386 737,700
Balance heginning of year 4,519,133 102,701 4416432 3311.014 4415435 {3
Balance end of year $ 5269580 8§ 100862 $5.168718 5 33586002 F4,431.021 § 737697

See accompanying independent auditor's report,
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BUDGETARY. COMPARISON SCHEDULE-BUDGEL

BUENA VISTA COUNTY

TO GAAP RECONCILIATION

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Revenues
Expenditures
Net

Other fnancing sources, net

Beginning fund balances

Ending fund balances

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

See accompanying independent auditor's report.
. 44 !

39

Governmental Funds

Modified
Cash Accrual Accrual
Basis Adjusiments Basis

$13,330,497 § 339,508 $13,670,005
12,810,532 23,101 12,833,633
519,965 316,407 836,372
230,482 66,059 296,541
4,519,133 262224 4,781,357
§ 5269530 % 644,690 S 5914270




BUENA VISTA COUNTY
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION - BUDGETARY REPORTING
JUNE 30, 2005

The budgetary comparison is presenied as Required Supplementary Information in accordance with
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 41 for governments with significant budgetary
perspective differences resulting from not being able to present budgetary comparisons for the General Fund
and each major Special Revenue Fund,

TIn aceordance with the Code of Towa, the County Board of Supervisors annually adopts a budget on the cash
basis following required public notice and hearing for all funds except blended component units and Agency
Funds, and appropriates the amount deemed necessary for each of the different County offices and
departments. The budget may be amended during the year utilizing similar statutorily preseribed
procedures. Encumbrances are not recognized on the cash basis budget and appropriations lapse at year
erd.

Formal and legal budgetary control is based upoen ten major classes of expenditures known as functions, not
by fund or fund tvpe. These ten functions are: public safety and legal services, physical health and social
services, mental health, county environment and education, roads and transportation, governmental services
to residents, administration, non-program, debt service, and capital projects. Function disbursements
required to be budgeted include disbursements for the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service
Fund, and Capital Projects Funds. Although the budget document presents function disbursements by fund,
the legal level of control is at the aggregated function level, not by fund. Legal budgetary control is also
based upon the appropriation to each office or department. During the year, threc budget amendments
increased budgeted disbursements by $1,810,543. The budget amendments are reflected in the final
budgeted amounts.

In addition, annual budgets are similarly adopted in accordance with the Code of lowa by the appropriate
governing body as indicated: for the County Extension Office by the County Agricultural Extension
Council, for the County Assessor by the County Conference Board, for the E911 System by the E911
Service Board, and for Emergency Management Services by the County Emergency Management
Cotmission.
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BUENA VISTA COUNTY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAIOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS Schedule |
JUNE 30, 2005

Special Revenus

Local County Resource LA Clay
Option Recorder’s  Enhancemeni  Jail Conservation  Buckingham  Newell  Reglonal  Recorders
Menal Secondary Record and Security  Drainage Land Estate Cemetery Water Electronic  Capllal
Health Roads Managooen:  Froisciion Fund Disiricts  Acquisition Trust Trust CDEG Trapsactions  Digiests Towl
ASSETS
Cash and pooled investiments 3 441,839 % 324244 % 17,192 % 26,840 $14520 §F 1006862 3 82077 3 67,281 % 2,273 - g 2,282 5 (11,133} $1,038.039
Recaivables:
Property tax:
Delinguent 1,994 - - - - - B - - - - B 1,994
Succeeding year 510,716 - - - - - - . - - - - 310716
Avcounts {038 - 400 - - - &7 - - - - - 1,573
Agorued interest - - 15 33 - - - 54 i - 8 - 123
Diramage assessments - N - - - 32,044 - - - - - - 32,643
e from other governments 48,878 T0.004 - - - - - - - 8,580 - 34089 141,551
Prepaid expenses 1841 - ~ - - - - o - - - - 1,841
Fotal assets £ 1,006356 § 3947248 § 17611 5 26673 514320 § 133506 % $2.024 % 67345 5 2276 8§ 8580 3 2200 § 22036 31748485
CIABILITIES AN PUND BOLOTY
Liabilitizs:
Accounts payshle $ 3243 % - 5 " ¥ - 5 - § 74483 % - 3 - - § 2380 3 - 5 19158 5§ 128431
Jierest pavable - - - - - 30,953 - - - - - - 204953
Salaries and benefils payahle 2,639 - - - - - - - - - - - 1639
Due to other governmenis 105,964 - - - - - - - - - - - 143964
Preferred revenue: -
Secceeding year property lax S8 - - - - - - - - - - - 310,716
Other 1874 - - . - 2,644 _ - - e 34,518
Total Habilities 633,621 - - e - 138,082 S - : | _ B13743
Fund squiiy:
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Drainage warranis - - - - - {101,2043 - - - - - - {101,204
Future expenditures - - - - - 96,628 - - - - - - 96,628
iisreserved 352733 394748 17,611 26,673 450 - s2.124 67343 2376 $,200 2,290 3,798 930818
Total fund equity 352,733 394248 1¥61L 26673 14,520 {4.376% 52,124 67 343 2,276 6,200 2,280 G354
Total fabilities and fond equity § 1006356 5 394248 3 PR6I1 05 264673 §14520 § 133306 % 32,124 % p7345 5 2776 5 AS80 3 2,290 31,748 485

See acoompanying independent auditor's teport.
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COMBINING S  OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES
AN CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAIOR GOVERNMENTAL FINDS

YEAR ENDED IUNE 30,2005

Special Revenue

Locul County Resource LA, Clay
Option Recorder's  Enbancement ait Conservation Buckinghsmn Newell Regional Recorder's
Wental Seeondary Records and Security  Drainage Land Estate Cemetery  Waer  Electrome Capital
Health Reads  Masagement  Profection Fund  Distiets  Acquisiion Tust Trast  CDBG Trassactions  Projecis Total
Hevenugs:
Property and other Ceunty tax C% 381,310 5 164308 % - g ~ 3 - - 3 - $ - s - 5 - 5 - 3 - g 755,808
Intergovemmental 380,710 - - 11,459 - - - - - 592,481 - 340685 1518735
Charges for services 19,822 - 4,280 - 6.632 v 1,983 - - - - - 23,817
Use of money and property - - 238 384 - - g7 851 23 - 198 - 1,771
Miscollaneous - e - - 285718 3,182 - - - - - 286,000
Total revenues 1,252,942 394,598 4.308 11,843 6637 285713 7,252 g3 23 592481 198 34,080 2501135
Expendiures:
Operating:
Physical health and gocial services - - - - - - 236 - - - - 136
Mental health 1,235,061 - - - - " - - . - - - 1,255,061
Governmental services 1o residents - - - - - - - - B - 34874 - 34 874
Administraiion - - ~ - 11,793 - - - - - B ~ 11,795
Mon-program - - 10044 21,349 - 460,740 21,349 - - 586,281 - - 1,129,763
Capital projects e - L - - 22098 - - . R 334092 257978
Total expenditures 255,061 - 10.044 21,349 11785 513,726 21349 236 - 385,281 34874 234,992 2,689,707
EBxcess {deficlency} of revenues over expenditures {2119y 394,558 {5536} {9500y {51633 (228.008) (14,097 615 23 6200 (34676) {200,503} (98,572}
Crher financing sources {uses):
Crperating transfers in {out} - {402,500) - - - - 23,838 - - - - 196,738 {179,378}
Ceneral obligation bond proceesds - - - - - - - - - - - 65,000 65,000
Drainage district warranis - - - - - 183227 - - - o - - _ 183,227
Total other Grancing sources (uses) - {402 901y - ~ - - 163,227 234838 . - - - 264,745 4%, 850
Excess {deficiencyy of revenues and other financing
sources Over expenditures and other Raancing uses {2,119 {8,303) (5,338 {9,506 (5,163) (64781 9,741 615 23 6,200 {34,676} 63,832 (4496733
Fund balances beginming of year LLEBAEEY | M235) 23,147 36,479 19683 50205 42383 65,730 2283 - 36966 (60.034) 984915
Fund baiances end of year § 352733 % 304248 § 17611 § 26673 $143520 3 {4376 % 2824 & 6735 % 2276 % 6200 F 0 ZI90 % 3,795 § 935242

See accompanying independent anditor's report.
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COMBINING SCHEDILE OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND
AND LIABILITIES - AGENCY FUNDS
JUNE.30, 2005

Schedule 3

Auto
Livense
Connty  Agniculfural  County Cominunity and
{Cash and pooled investments:
County treasurer s - g 1832 268923 % 127673 % 6218 % 42629 % 2930 £ 319644 § 324408 5 1,094,227
Other County officials 40,951 - - - - - - - - 40,951
Receivables:
Property tax:
Delinguent - 614 1,404 39,197 2,207 21,904 456 - 1,512 67,334
Succeeding year - 157,234 339574 HLITS,238 376,153 3833477 213,146 - 379582 15,6538.484
Actounis 4,084 - 340 - - - - 26,227 28,499 59,152
Special assessments - - - - - - - - 70.870 70.870
Totwal assats 343,037 % IA9750 $630241 % 102386108 5 SB45V8 5 3018050 $216837 §S 345871 5 8048371 316990998
I TARILITIES
Accounts payable 5 - £ - $ 754§ - $ - k3 5 - 5 - $ 50444 & 53008
Salaries and benefits payable - 333 - - - - 263 696
Thue to other governments 32,878 139,750 622,344 10,286,108 584,378 3918010 216,532 345871 746,872 16,512,943
st payable 59 - - - i “ - 7,192 19,351
Total liabilities $43037 % 158750 $4630241 £ 10286108 % 384378 % 3918010 3216332 3 345871 % BO4RTL 516,990,998

See accompenying independent auditor’s report.
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BUENA VISTA COUNTY
EDULE OF CHANGES I FIDUCIARY ASSETS
AND LIABILITIES - AGENCY FUNDS

YEAR ENGED JUNE 30,2605 Schedule 4
Auto
License
County Agricultural County Community and
Offices Estension  Assessor Schoals Colleges  Comorations Townshins  UseTax Ciber Total
ASSETS AND IJABILITIES
Balances beogisning of vear $ 28020 05 144275 0§ 621106 310279039 5§ 497058 £ 3595867 S 218030 $ 352433 0§ 9122352 § 14609000
Additioas: )
Property and other County tax - 157,035 338,355 091943 575,235 3832711 213,056 - 378,558 15,606,881
ES11 surcharge - - - - - - - - 135,940 135,940
State 1ax erediis - 7.767 22,322 549,502 26,764 182,606 12,010 - 20,303 821,766
Cifice foes and collections 358,435 - 1,008 " - - - - 112,187 471,721
Ao licenses, use tax, and postage - - - - - - - 4,683,655 - 4,383,655
Aszessments - - - - - - - - i8166 18,190
Trusts 479448 - - 3 - - - . - 465,335 G44,784
Total additions 537,884 164,802 381,776 10,641 905 602,019 40615317 2230066 4083635 1130513 22082937
Deductions:
Agency remittances:
To other govermments 354,440 149327 372,641 14,584,856 314,459 3,693,174 227,464 4050217 o494 887 20,681,505
Trusts paid out 476427 - - - - . - o - 542007 1019434
Total deducrions 330,857 149,327 372641 10,584 835 314,499 3,693,174 237464 4090217 1237894 21700939
Balances end of year § 43037 § 139750 § 630,241 310286108 § 584578 § 301R0I0 $2J6332 5 345871 § 204871 516,900,008

See accompanying independent suditor's report.
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BUENA VISTA COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES BY SOURCE AND EXPENDITURER BY

FUNCTION - ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Revenues:
Property and other County tax
Interest and penalty on property tax
intergovernmental
Licenses and permits
Charges for service
Use of money and property
Misceilaneous

Total

Expenditures:

Operating:
Public safety and legal services
Physical health and social services
Mental health
County eavironment and education
Roads and transportation
Governmental services to residents
Administration
Non-programn

Diebt service

Capital projects

Schedule 5

FORTHE LAST FOUR YEARS
Modified Accrual Basis

2005 2004 2003 2002
$ 6,388,682 § 6,136,029 § 4,697,643 § 4,337,449
34,702 39,269 31,434 29,095
6,021,929 5,401,544 4,388,110 4,382,573
32,782 27,654 26,003 26,467
673,495 386,418 503,889 441,771
131,098 129,839 154053 220,720
367,317 197 (8K 128,306 59039
$ 13,670,005 $12,518.141 § 9920440 9,498 014
$ LB16,398 § 1.891,622 § 1,789,460 1,648,975
1,022,394 1,681,819 1,167,713 1,063,282
1,255.061 1,170,050 1,126,253 1,236,325
4932 960 460,508 471,973 467,527
3,051,873 3,298,592 2,725,349 2,634 654
452,522 436,245 345,670 301,108
§79,435 863,822 1,009,894 G23.179
2,138,420 1,158,653 213,401 85,869
1,265,592 881,621 693,761 697,150
257,978 332,071 1,846,546 633 988
$ 12,833,633 §11,675008 §11,390,022 § 9714457

Total

See accompanying independent auditor's report.
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BUENA VISTA COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS ' Schedule ¢

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Grantor/Program

Direct:
LS. Department of Agriculture:
Watershed Protection and Flood Protection

Indirect:
U.S. Department of Agriculfure:
lowa Department of Fleman Services:
Human Services Administrative Reimbuorsements:
State Administrative Matching Grant for Food
Stamp Program

(.8, Department of Housing and Urban Development:
lowa Department of Economic Development:
Community Development Block
Grante/State’s Program

U.S. Department of Transportation:
Iowa Department.of Transportation:
Highway Planning and Construction

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Towa Pepartment of Human Services:
Human Services Administrative Reimbursements:
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
Refugee and Entrant Agsistance - State
Administered Programs

Chikd Care Mandatory and Matching Funds
of the Child Care and Development Fund

Foster Care - Title IV-E

Adoption Assistance

Medical Assistance Program

Social Services Block Grant

Social Services Block Grant

Iowa Department of Public Health:
Project Grants and Cooperative Agreements
for Tuberculosis Control Programs
Consolidated Knowledge Development and
Application (KD&A) Program
Immunization Granis
Siouxland District Health Department:
Center for Disease Control and Prevention-
Investigations and Technical Assistance
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CFDA
Number

10.804

10.561

14.228

20.205

93.558
93.566

93.596
93.658
93.650
93778
93.667
93.607

93.116

92,230
93.268

63283

Agency or

Pass-through Program
Number Expenditures
$173,759
8.365
583,901

BROS-COU1-(50)-85-11 67,443
BROS-CO11-(64)-8)-11  _158.463
223,908

11,173
15
2,188
5,848
1,363
12,014

7.273
95,5412

SEE4TBI0 11,407
58851PG2 103,570
58851426 27,343

SESSBTO3-LPHALIOL 18,638

(Continued)



BUENA VISTA COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS Schedule 6
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005 {Coentimued)
Agency or
CFDA Pags-through Program
Grantor/Program Number Mumber Expenditures

Indirect:
U8, Department of Homeland Security:
fowa Department of Public Defense:
Towa Homeland Security and Emergency
Management Division:
State Pomestic Preparedness Equipment

Support Program 97.004 ODP-2003-009 $ 47,691
State Domestic Preparedness Equipment

Support Program 97.004 ODP-2003-1] 126.040
Emergency Management Performance Grants 97.042

Total

Ragis of Presentation - The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of
Buena Vista County and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accouning. “The tnformation on this
schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Ovganizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ
from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation, of the basic financial statements,

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Officials of Buena Vista County:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of Buena Vista County, lowa, as of and for the year ended June 30,
2003, which collectively comprise the County's basic financial statemeris lsted in the table of contents and have
issued our repurt thereon dated November 3, 2005, We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable 1o financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standerds, issued by the Compitrolier General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Beporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Buena Vista County’s internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements and not 1o provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting, However, we noted
certain matters involving internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be
reportable conditions. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relaling to significant
deficiencies in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting that, in our judgment, could
adversely affect Buena Vista County’s ability to record, process, surnmarize, and repost financial dala consistent
with the assertions of management in the financial statements. Reportable conditions are described in Part 11 of
the accompanying Schedule of Findings.

A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control
components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
arnounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detectad
within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Our
consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose ail matters in the
internal control that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable
conditions that are also considered to be material wesknesses, However, of the reportable conditions described
above, we believe item H-A-05 is a material weakness.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Buena Vista County’s financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amoumts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The resuits of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other maiters that are required to be reported under
Covernment Avditing Standards. However, we noted certain innmaterial instances of noncompliance or other
matlers that are described in Part IV of the accompanying Schedule of Findings.
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Comments involving statutory and other legal matters about the County’s operations for the year ended
June 30, 2005 are based exclusively on knowledge obtained from procedures performed during our audit of the
financial statements of the County. Since our audit was based on tests and samples, not all transactions that might
have had an impact on the comments were necessarily andited. The comments involving statutory and other legal
matters are not intended to constitute legal interpretations of those statutes.

This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use of the officials, employees,
and citizens of Buena Vista County and other parties to whom Buena Vista County may report inchuding federal
awarding agencies and pass-through entities. This report is not intended to be and should not be used by anyane
other than these specified parties.

We would Eke to acknowledge the many courtesics and assistance extended to us by personnel of Buena

Vista County during the course of our audit, Should you have any questions concerning any of the above matters,
we shall be pleased to discuss them with you at your convenience.

November 3, 2005
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OGN COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Officials of Buena Vista County:
Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Buena Vista County, Iowa, with the types of compliance requirements
described in ULS. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are
applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2005, Buena Vista County’s major
federal programs are identified in Part { of the accompanying Schedule of Findings, Compliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements applicable o each of its major federal
programs is the responsibility of Buena Vista County’s management. Our responsibility s to express an opinion
on Buena Vista County's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of complance in accordance with the U.S. generally accepted auditing standards
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States. Local Governments, and
MNon-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circnlar A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit
to oblain reasouable assurance about whether non-compliance with the types of compliance requirements referrad
to above that could bave a direct and material effect on a major federal program ocewred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about Buena Vista County’s compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances, We believe our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on Buena Vista
County’s compliance with those reguirements.

In our opinion, Buena Vista County complied, in all snaterial respects, with the requirements referred to
above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the vear ended June 30, 2005,

Internal Controt Over Compliance

The management of Buena Vista County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
conirol over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements applicable to
federal programs, In planning and performing our audit, we constdered Buena Vista County’s internal control
over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in
order to determine owr auditing procedures {or the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OME Circular A-133.
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A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the ntermnal
controt components does not reduce to a relatively low Jevel the risk that non-compliance with applicable
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements caused by error or fraud that would be material
in relation to a major federal program being audited may ocour and not be detected within a timely period by
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Ow consideration of the internal control
over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be reportable
conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be
material weaknesses. We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that
we consider to be material weaknesses.

This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use of the officials, employees,
and citizens of Buena Vista County and other parties to whom Buena Vista County may report, including federal

awarding agencies and pass-through entities, This report is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

Z{" .1%&%&@) W uffjaz‘w r wd &/

November 3, 20035



BUENA VISTA COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Part I: Summary of the Independent Auditor’s Results:

(a)
(b)

A qualified opinion was issued on the financial statements.

Reportable conditions in internal control over financial reporting were disclosed by the audit of the
financial statements, including material weaknesses,

The audit did not disclose any non-compliance which is material to the financial statements.
No material weaknesses in internal control over the major programs were identified.
An unqualified opinion was issued on compliance with requirements applicable to cach major program.

The audit disclosed no andit findings which were required to be reported in accordance with Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Section .510(a).

Major programs were as follows:
- CFDA Number 14.228 « Community Development Block Grants/State’s Program.
- CFDA Number 20.205 - Highway Planning and Construction.

The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs was $300,000.

Buena Vista County did not qualify as a low-risk auditee.

[
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BUENA VISTA COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
YEAR ENDELD JUNE 30, 2005

Part Il Findines Related to the Financial Statements:

INSTANCES OF NON-COMPLIAMNCE:

No matters were reported.

REPORTABLE CONDITIONS:

11-A-05

Segrepation of Duties - During our review of inlernal control, the existing procedures are

evaluated in order to determine that incompatible duties, from a control standpoint, are not
performed by the same employee. This segregation of duties helps to prevent fosses from
employee error or dishonesty and therefore maximizes the accuracy of the County’s
financial statements. We noted that generally one or two individuoals in an office may have
control over areas Tor which no compensating controls exist,

Recommendation - We realize that with a limited number of office employees, segregation of
duties is difficult. However, each official should review the operating procedures of their office
to obiain the maximum internal control possible under the circumstances. The official should
utilize current personnel to provide additional control through review of financial transactions,
reconciliations, and reports. Such reviews should be performed by independent persons to the
enitent possible, and should be evidenced by initials or signature of the reviewer and the daie of
the review. Following are controls which should be mmplemented whenever possible;

1. All incoming mail should be opened by an employee who is not authorized to make entries
to the accounting records. This employee should prepare a listing of cash and checks
received. The mail should then be forwarded {o the accounting personnel for processing.
Later, the same listing should be compared to the cash receipt records.

2. Bank accounts should be reconciled promptly at the end of gach manth by an individual
who does not sign checks, handle or record cash.

3. Checks or warrants should be signed by an individual whe does not otherwise participate in
the preparation of the checks or warranis. Prior to signing, the checks or warrants and the
supporting documentation should be reviewed for propriety. After signing, the checks or
warrants should be mailed without allowing them to return to individuals who prepare the
checks or warrants or approve vouchers for payment.



BUENA VISTA COUNTY
SCHEDULY OF FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2045

Part 1L Findimgs Related to the Financial Statements: - (Continued)

REPORTABLE CONDITIONS - (Continued)

11-A-05

-B-05

11-C-08

Segregation of Duties - (Continued)

- To the degree possible in the various departments, incoming mail is opened, and
checks and cash histed, by a person not awthorized to make accounting entries. Checks and cash
are then twped over to accounting personnel {or processing. The st of checks and cash is later
reconciled with cash receipt records.

To the degree possible in cach dc.,par ment, bank accounts are reconciled promptly by a staff
person who is not authorized to sign checks.

To the degree possible in the departments, the following responsibilities are segregated: approval
of supporting documentation of claims submitted, preparing and recording of disbursements,
reviewing of warrant with original claim documentation, and handling of petty cash.

Materials and Supplies Inventory - The financial statements do not inchde materials and
supplies inventory, pertaining primarify to the Special Revenuve Funds., The amounts of
such inventories are not determinable because no count has been taken by the County.

Recomumendation - The County should make sppropriate counts of materials and supplies
inventory on hand at Jupe 30 each vear and determine the cost o be included in the annual
finaneial statements in order to conform with generally accepted accounting principles. The
annual count should be coordinated with the independent auditors who wiil need to observe the
inventory counting procedures.

Response - At the current time sufficient resources are not available to perform this inventory on
June 30, However, an anpual inventory is iaken at another time during the fiscal vear for
management purposes. The Board of Supervisors has determined that this inventory is

satisfactory for management’s need, and that the cost of changing to a June 30 inventory excecds
the benefit to be gained.

Conelusion - Response accepted,

Approval of Time Sheets - We noted some time sheets which had no indication that they had
been reviewed and approved prior to the preparation of the payroll.

Recommendation - Time sheets should be maintatned for all County employees. Time sheets
should be approved and initialed by the employee’s supervisor or by an independent official who
is a0t involved with payroll,

Response - Department Heads will be reminded of their responsibility to approve all time sheets
for emplovees of their respective departments,

Conclusion - Response accepted.
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BUENA VISTA COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Part IH: Findings and Ouestioned Costs for Federal Awards:

INSTANCES OF NON-COMPLIANCE:

Mo matters were reported.

Part IV: Other Findines Related 10 Required Statutory Reporting:

IV-A08  Official Depositories - A resolution naming official depositories has been adopted by the Board.

IV-B-05

IV-C-05

The maxiimum deposit amounts stated in the resolution were not exceeded during the year ended
June 30, 2003, except for deposits at Security Trust & Savings Bank, The maximum authorized
amount of $8,500,000 was exceeded in October, 2004 and April, 2005 by approximately
$2,300,000. Also, the ShertfT s deposits at Central Bank exceeded the maximum authorized
amount of $100,000 by approximately $86,000 af June 30, 2005,

Recommendation - A new reselution in amounts sulficient to cover anticipated balances af all
approved depositorics should be adopted by the Board.

Response - The authorized maxinum deposit for the Treasurer will be raised to $20,000.000.
‘The authorized maximum deposit for the Sheriff at Central Bank has been increased as
reconimended.

Certified Budget - Disbursements during the vear ended June 30, 20035 exceaded the amount
budgeted in the non-program function prior to the December 14, 2004 budget amendment, and
the debt service function disbursements exceeded the amount budgeted at June 30, 2003,

Recommendation - The budget should have been amended in accordance with Chapter 331.435 of
the Code of lowa before disbursements were allowed to exceed the budget.

County was required to write warrants within 7-16 days of receiving CDBG funds. The
timeframe required for a budget amendment is a minimum of 18 days since the county must
publish notice of an amendment not less than 10 days prior to a hearing. The county has 3
official eounty newspapers of which one 15 a weekly publication with a minimum of 5§ days lead
time. 1t was not possible 10 complete the budget amendment prior to writing the warrant. The
CEDBG grant project is now complete. Also, because of the refinancing of the hospital bonds
there were additional dishursements we had not anticipated.

Conclusion - Response accepted.
Questionable Expenditures - No expenditures were noted that we believe may not meet the

requirements of public purpose as defined in an Attorney General’s opinion dated April 25,
1979.




BUENA VISTA COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF FINIINGS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Part IV: Other Findines Related to Required Statutory Reponting: - (Continued)

JV-I-03

IV-E-05

IV-F-05

IV-G-05

IV-H-035

IV-1-03

1V-J-05

Travel Expense - No expenditures of County money for travel expense of spouses of County
officials or employees were noted.

Business Transactions - No business transactions between the County and County officials or
employees were noted.

statutory provisions. The amount of coverage should be reviewed annually (o ensure that
coverage 1s adequate Tor current eperations,

Board Minutes - No transactions were found that we believe should have been approved in the
Board minutes but were not. However, the published minutes did not contain a Hst of claims and
the purpose as required by Chapter 349.18 of the Code of Jowa and several Attorney General’s
opinicns.

Recommendation - Published minutes should contain a list of all approved claims and the purpose
of the claim.

Response - Since we do not receive mauiries about this information, and in an attempt to manage
the cost of publication, the Board of Supervisors has directed that a list of the claims paid should
be published guarterly inchuding the vendor and amount. More complete information is available
by request.

Conclusion - Response accepted.
Deposits and Investments - No instances of non-compliance with the deposit and investment

provisions of Chapter 12B and 12C of the Code of Jowa and the County’s investment policy
were noted.

Resource Enhancement and Protection Certification ~ The County has dedicated property
{ax revenue to conservation purposes sufficient to meet the requirements of Chapter 455
A T9(1)bY of the Code of Towa in order to receive additional REAP funds allocated in
accordance with subsections ()2} and (H(3).

Countv Extension Office - The County Extension Office is operated under the authority of
Chapter 176A of the Code of Towa and serves as an agency of the State of Towa. This fund is
administered by an extension council separate and distinet from County operations and,
consequently, is not included in Exhibits A or B,

Disbursements during the year ended June 30, 2005 for the County Extension Office did not
exceed the amount budgeted.
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BUENA VISTA COUNTY
SCHEDULE QF FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 20035

Part TV; Other Findings Related to Reguired Statutory Reporting: - {Continued)

H-K-05

IV-1.-05

H-M-(5

Carryover of Compensatory Hours - Unused compensatory fime for several emplovees in the
Sheriff”s department and one emplovee in the Recorder’s departiment appears to be in excess of
established policies as of June 30, 2005.

Recommendation - Enused vacation and comapensatory hours should be monitored closely to
deternmine that they are within County policy and legal guidelines.

Response - The Chairman of the Board will meet with the Recorder and the Sheriffto encourage
the development of a plan for reduction of the compensatory time through paid time off, and to
encourage close monitoring of the accrual of compensatory time.

Coneclusion - Response accepted.

Department Heads Vacation Carrvover - The departiment heads of E911 and Conservation had
approximately 700 hours and 350 hours, respectively, of accrued vacation as of June 30, 2003,
Although the County’s policy allows the carrvover of vacation with departient head approval,
these amounts result in a current Liability which may become a substantial payment at a future

date.

Recommendation - To avoid a possible substantial payment in the future, the Board should
consider eliminating some of this carryover through payments or paid time off.

Response - The Chairman of the Board of Supervisors will meet with the Communications
Commission and Conservation Board to disceuss the vacation caryover policy of the two boards
to encourage the development of a plan for reduction of the carryover vacation through paid time
off.

Conclusion - Response accepted.

Self-Funding Insurance - The Insurance Division of the Towa Department of Commerce requires
all Towa Public Bodies with self-funding insurance plans to comply with Section 309A.15(1) of
the Code of Jowa and file a centificate of comphiance, an actuarial opinion, and the annual
financial report with the Commissioner of Insurance within 90 days following the end of the plan
yvear. The County has not filed the required documentation with the Commissioner for the vear
ended June 30, 2005,

Recommendation - The County should prepare and file the necessary documents with the
Insurance Division as soon as practicable in order to avoid any penalties,

Response - There had mitiaily been some discussion concerning whether the County was still
required to complete these documents. However, it does now appear that we are required to file
this and the necessary documents have been sent to an actuary. That report will be completed
shortly.

Conclusion - Response accepted.



